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Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

a) Acronyms

BOM

ICPAK

IPSAS

PFM

PSASB

Kshs

Board of Management

Instihrte of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

Public Finance Managernent

Puhlic Sector Accounting Standards Board

Kenya Shillings

b) Glossary of Terms
Fiduciary Managctnenl The key rnanagemcnt personnel who had financia I responsihility

l
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2. Kcy Entity Information and Management

a) llackgrou ntl information

Kilifi County Microflnance (Wezesha) Fund is established by and derives its authority and
accountability fronr Kilifi Cotrnty Microfinance Fund Act gazetted on l0'h June 20 16. The Funci
is wholly orvned by the County Governnrent ol'Kilitl and is dorniciled in Kenya.

The fltrnd's objective is to provide support to Micro and Snrall ['.nterprises operating within the
County through provision of seed capital, Market linkage and Employment Creation.

h) Principa! Activitics

The Fund has five key rmandates as follows:
(i) To provide access to capital and financial facilities to micro and small enterprises owned by
the residents in the County.

(ii) To suppott micro and srnall enterprises to develop linkages with large enterprises.

(iii) To facilitate marketing of prodr.rcts and seF/ices of micro and small enterprises owned by
residents in the county in both dornestic and international rnarkets.

(iv) To facilitate investrnent in small and rnicro enterprises oriented in comrnercial infrastructure
such as business or industrial parks, stalls. rnarkets or business incuhators that will be beneficial
to the enterprises.

(v) To provide business development seryices to nricro and small enterprises, and generatc
gainfrrl self-ernplol,ment for the residerrts of Kilifi.

The nrission of'Kilifi County Microfinance (Wczesha) Fund is to Provide Affordahlc
Microfinance for Employtnent Creation.

The vision is, Mai.sha Boro Ku,a l4lakili/i.

c) Board of Tnrstecs/Fund Adnrinistration Committee

I
Daniel S.G.Masha Ag. Chairman of the Board

1 Lynne Farrah Mernber

3 Winnie Wakati Luwali Mernber

4 Sidi Jetura Chai Member

s llhrrnr K. Raymond

Peter Shoka Msuko

Mernhcr

6 Secretary/Fund Adm in istrator

lv

Ref Name Position
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d) Kcy Managenrcnl

e) Registered Offices

P.O. Box 519
Departrnent of Trade, l'ourism and Cooperative Development Offices
Kilifi Water Road
KiIifi. KENYA

0 Fund Contacts

Telephone: (254)790 465 544
E-mail : kilifi countyrnicrofi nancefund@grnail.com
Website: http://www.kilifi .go.ke/

g) Fund Bankers

Cooperative Bank of Kenya Lirnited
Kilifi Branch
P.O. Box 96-80 | 08
Kilifi, Kenya

h) Independcnt Auditors

Auditor General
Of fice of the Auditor General
Anniversary 1'owers, I ln ivers ity Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Na irobi. Kenya

i) Principal Lega! Adviser

The County Attorney
County Government of Kilifi
P.O. Box -s l 9 - 801 08
Kilifi. Kenya

I Peter Shoka Msuko Fund Manager/ Adrninistrator

1 Hussein Fondo Fund Accountant

-)
Andrew Kai Principal Procurernent Offi cer

Ref Neme Position
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3. The lloard of Tnrstees

Name

Qualifications: Master of public policy and Administration
from Kenyatta I In iversity.
BSc. I lons. lrorensic Science ancl Criminology l,ondon
South Uank I Jn iversity.

Fxperience. Over l0 years in senior management positions
in County Government of Kilifi. AppointeJ as Chairperson
olthe Fund Mana-qernent Committee on December 2g,
2022, she is a seasoned prof'essional with a background in
pLrblic service.

Qualifications. Bachelor of Commerce degree frorn the
University of Eastern Africa. Master's in Business
Adm in istration (Strategic Management).

Experience: Over 8 years' experience in [rusiness
managetrent in privatc sector. Worked as legal assistant and
currently practicing law.

Qualification: Post Graduate Diplonra Human Resource
Managernent fi'orn European Business University
[,uxembou rg.

Degree (l-l-B) frorn Catholic University of Eastern Africa.

{t: O

\
a

Lynne Tracy Farrah

Trade Representative
l. DoB t}.t t.1974

rF

')

Experience: Over l0 years working experience in the
County Government. Currently the Chief Officer for Trade_
Clounty Governnrent of Kilifi.

Sidi Jefwa Chai
Woman Representative

DOB 24.06.1984

t"- i
-rJ-$

.\G

Winnie Wakati Luwali
Financc Representative

DOB:1990

t>
I

\. 1
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fl)

Experience: Over 30 years in Savings and Credit
Cooperatives luanagelnent.

Qrralification: Bachclor in Cooperative Business.

Experience. Over 3 ycars cxperiencing in teaching
pro lession.

Qualifications. Bachelor of Education and Counselling.

Damaris Kadzo Kitsao

PWDs Represenatiive

D.O.B 8.r 1.t977

Cooperative Movement
Representative

DOB:21.04.1961

Uhuru Karisa Rayrnond

Youth Rcpresentativc

DOB 26.06.199.5

v

itt,

Expcrience - Over -5 years' experience in teaching both
private and public school.

Qua lifi cation : Bachelor o {' [:ducation Bio/Chenr lrom
Pwani University.
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Expericnce: Over 7 years' experience in

Public Industry with special focus on Business

Developtnent and Finance.

Qualifications: Bachelor of Comtnerce Majoring in

Accounting.

Professional qtralifications CPA II,

both Private and

Fund Manager.

Petcr Shoka Mstrko

Fund Manager

DOB 05.10.1986

\r t

,\.=.
tlr
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4. Manrgement 'l-clm

Andrew Kai

Fund Procurement offi ccr

DOB r 978

Experience: Over l2 years'experience in
procuretnent both private and public sectors

Qualifications: Bachelor of Business
Managernent (BBM) Supplies and Procurement
option.

Licensed Supply Chain Practitioner.

Menrber KISM.
Area of responsivity: Fund Procurernent
Operations,

3

Experience: Ovcr 7 years' experience in both
Private and Public lndustry with special focr-rs on
Business [)evcloprnent and Finance.

Qualifications: Baclrelor of Comrnerce Ma.ioring
in Accounting.

CPA II.
Area of Responsibility: Oversee the day-to-day
operations ofthe Fund;

Perer Shoka Msuko

Fund Manager

DOB 0s.t0.1986

Hussein Fondo

Accoun tan t

2. DOB 1982

[:ixperience: Over l0 years' experience in
Accountancy both private and public sectors

Qualifications: Bachelor of Cornmerce

CPA (K) and CS (K)

Area of responsihility: [.'und Accounting
opcrations.

Membership: ICPA(K). ICS(K)

t\

Name Details of qualifications and erperience

I
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5, Boarrl/Funcl Chairpcrson's Report

Board/Fund Chairperson's Report
I am delighted to present the Annual Repoft and Financial Statements for Kilifi County
Microtlrrance (Wezesha) Fund for the year ended 30'h June, 2023.

This Fund was established by an Act of County Assembly. The main purpose of the Fund is to
provide access to capital and financial facilities to MSEs owned by residents in the County. The
Fund Board provides oversight role to the Fund. It is consisting of seven non-executive members
appointed by the Governor. The day-to-day rnanagement of the business and implementation of
policy decisions is the responsibility ofthe Fund Secretariat.

The.joint effort of the Board, the Secretariat and the Sub-County teams led to achievement of the
follorving rnilestones in the fifth year of the life of the Fund (FY2022/2023\:

I l.

t. Partnership With Financial I nstitutions
Wezesha Fund was able to partner wilh Kenya Comnrercial Bank and Rafiki
Microfinance Bank to assist in providing access to capital and financial facilities to micro
and srnall enterprises (MSMEs) owned by the residents in the County and efficiency in
loan d ishursernent and recovcries.

The Fund, like any other entity, had sorne challenges during the year under review. They
included the lollowing:

(i) ljnder staffing. Currently the Fund is understaflcd, with only three credit officers covering
the all seven Cub Counties

(ii) Lack of firnd vehicle to facilitate on loan recoveries and follorv ups.

(iii) I Iigh political int'luence and change in governrnent af1'ecting the loan recoveries process

Wezesha Fund Launch
The kilifl county rnicrofinance fund act was arnended. changing from the previous
Mbegu luncl to Wezeslra Fund and assented on the 26il' May 2023 and was olficially
launched by I I is F.xcellency the Govelnor G ideon Mung'aro orr tlre I (r'l' June 2023.

\' t -'(

Daniel S.G. Masha
Ag. Chairperson

\

Appointment of Board Members
Kilifi County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fund Act 2016 provides that the Fund board
serves a term ofthree years eligible lor reappointrnent for one firrther tenn.

l.
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6. Rcport of The Fund Administrator

On behalf of the Fund secretariat. it gives me great pleasure to present our annual Report and
F'inancial Statements for the year ended 301h June. 2023.

The Ftrrrd rvas irr its seventlt year ol operation. During the financial year under revierv, the Fund
did not record growtlt in almost all pararneters mainly hecause it did not receive its budgetary
allocation lrorn County Treasury on tinre. Consequently. the Fund experienced many challenges
in discharging its mandate. including change in government that froze the lending activities of
the Fund, change in name from Mbegu to Wezesha Fund. Politicians telling people not to repay
their loarrs as part of winning votes. -l'herefore. the Fund could not achieve its all disbursement
arrd loan recoveries targets.

5.1 Highlights of the financial Performance for the year 202212023

The Ftrnd had a budget of Ksh. 197,200.000.00 in the Financial Year 2022/2023 out of which
Ksh 116.000.000.00 was to be sourced t'ronr the Cor"rnty Government annual allocation. gToh of
the btrdget which is equivalent to Ksh. 191.284.000.00 was lor lending. The remaining 3oln
arnounting to Ksh. -5,9 l(r,000.00 was treant for administration of the Fund.

a

Table l: Loan Dishursements for the last three years.

Perfo rma n ce

2022-2023

I 1,736,864.00

4t t,

l

22

I9

244,975.774

Outstanding l-oan Balarrces close of FY

2020t2021 202U2022

Arnount of Loans Approved & Disbursed

Nurnber of [,oans I)isbursed (]'otal)

Nurnber of'group hcne ficiaries

Nrnnber ol Cooperative Societv Beneficiaries

I 7l ,065,010

t.20_3

1. t95

I 
s r.o+o,ooo o

I

Solc proprictors

7 r.3 I 1.983Outstanding L.oan Balances bcginning ol FY 204,302,590

244,975,774 238,389,919.38

XI

[,oarr [) ishr rrsctnents

ll

Pa ra mete r

68_s

68?

8

204302.590.



Pl rit nt cter 2020t2021 2021/2022 2$22t2023

Outstanding Loan Balance (OLB)

(C urn u lat ive)

204.102.590.00 244.975.774.00 238,389,9r 9.38

Loan Repayrnents Rcceived 39.079.403.00 38.l-s0.307.00 19,067,818.62

a

a

Table 3: Portfolio and risk and amounted collected for the financial year 2022/2023

Total Inconrc generated frorn Managemerrt fees on
acco Loans Ksh 505.600.00

Groups. so le proprietors and

l,oan Recoveryi Collection

Table 2: Cumulative outstanding Loan Balance and Repayments.

Cooperative

Nante: Pctcr Shoka Msrrko

F rr n<l Arlministrator

Paramctcr Pcrformance

PAR(> lday) 45.h

Anrorrnt Collectcd 19,067,818.62

x

Kili/i Coun6, Micntfinance (ll/cz.ashQ Funl
Annual Ileport and Financial Statcments for thc vcar cndcd .lunc .10, 2023
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7. Statemcnt of Performancc against the Countt' Fund's Predetermined Objectives

I n trorluction

Section 164 (2) (0 of the Puhlic Finance Management Act,20l2 requires that. at the end of each
financial year. the accounting otficer shall prepare financial statements of the County
Govemment entity in accordance with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector
Accotrnting Standards Board includes a statement of the county govemment entity's
perforrnance against predeterrnined ob.jectives.

The key development objectives of the Fund as per the strategic plan lor 2020-2023 areto:

o) l,<>an Portlolio Management
b) []usiness suppoll Serwice
() lnstitution Capacity Building
d) El lective Governance

Progrcss on attainment of Strategic de velopment oh.iectives
Ilelow we rovide the fo ress oll atta in rn the stated ob

2 MOIjs was
signed with Kenya
Commercial Bank
and Rafiki
M icrofi nance
Bank.

No staff was
trained due to lack
of finances

Il ffect ive
Govcrnance

Maxinrise
opportunity
explo itation
through high
decision
mak in

Loan Portlolio
M anagc rnent

To increase
loan book
I 16.000,000

I-oan book
increase to
.s89.000.000

More groups.
cooperative, sole
proprietors and
cornpan ies
benefit from
accessing loans

Loan book grew
to
238.389.9 r9.98.00
and 685 groups
and I cooperative
benefited fronr
loans.

Rusiness Supporl

Institution
Capacity lluilding

set-v rces

l

Offer business
support
services to
6500 groups

Cred it risk
training tbr -3

credit stalf

(r.500 trained and
loan groups
cooperatives so le

proprietors and
srnall cornpan ies.

Irrrplenrcnl sta ff
perf'ornrancc
nl anagem en t

3 l'rained stall'
discharging their
duties well.

S stc n1

Signcd MOI Is

with Institution

Irnplernent robust
in fornration
lnanagem ent
systern

L]se of [-oan
nranagement and
accounting
systern

lnstallation of
Loan managernent
and accounting
systern.

x t

ectives:

1

Objective Outcome Indicator Performancc
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8. Corporatc Govcrna ncc Statcmcnt

J'he Roard olKilifi County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fund is conrrnittecl to ensure that the Fund
operates with integrity and ethics maintaining high standards ol Corporate Governance in the
interest ol its stakeholders. The Roard helieves that the Fund has conrplied with the guidelines on
Corporate Governancc Plactices as is required of public olficers.

The Board provides sh'atcgic leadership. policy dircction and supervision ol the Fund. It consists
ol 7 mernbers.

8. t Board Meetings Attcndance

The Board is rnandated to hold a mininrum olfour rneetings and a rnaxinrurn of nine rneetings in
a Financial Year. In the FY 202212023 the board held -5 lull Board nreetings. Below is a table
shorving the board rneetings attendance details:

Tablc 3: Board mccting attendancc.

Iloard Members Presents

1

4

4

(r

5

Tltc powcrs and frrnctions olthc hoard inclrrdc tlrc lollowin_s:

The hoard slrall provide strategic leadcrship. policy direction and supervision of the Fund. In
exercising its rnandate, thc hoard is vcsted u,ith thc following powers:

(a) Itnter into association witlr such otlter persons, bodics or organizations within or outsidc
Kcnya as the Roard rnay consider appropriate

September 2022 (Board Meeting)

Board Mecting Datc

27'h

| 't Nove rnber 2022 (Board Mceting)

lm Oecerrrher (R*rd *". ting)

--rnp ril 2023 (Roard Mceting)

(r"' April 2023(Board lnccting)

Kilifi Corrrrty Microflnancc (Wczcsha) Fund Act 20 I6 provides that the Fund board serves a

lcrrn olthrce years eligible for reappointment for onc fudher tenn.

The current board tnetnbers are serving first term whiclr cornnrenced on 20th March 2023, the
law requircs that the chainnan of the Board be recnrited by the County Public Service Board.
The contract of the chairpelson expired on 25'h May 2023 and no replacernent has been done.
The tcrrn of the Board rnembcrs expires on 20'h Marcl'r 2026.

8.2 Porvers and Functions ofthe Board
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(b) Advice the County Executive Member lor Finance as provided under section ll6(l),9
arrd I45 oIthe Public Finance Managernent Act,2012"

(c) Approve loan applications fonns
(d) Oversee intplernentation of the firnd activities

8.3 Board Mcmher's Process of Appointment and Removal from C)ffice

Thc four private board rnembers are norn inated hy the Executive Comrn ittee Member for
Trade and appointed by the Governor. These are youth representative. woman representative,
representative of people Iiving with disability and a iepresentative of the Cooperative
movement.

The cotrnty chief officer rcsponsible lor Trade and the cfrunty chief officer resporrsible for
Finance. 

i

I

The chairperson of the Board is recruited competitively bj the County Public Service Board.
vetted by the County Assemhly and appointed by the Govdrnor.

lA mernber of the Board may be rerrroved liorn olflce on lany orle or more of the following
grounds:

a) Lack ol irrtegrity

h) Gross rn isconduct

c) Violation of the Constitution or any other lau,

d) Physical or mental incapacity to perfornr the functions of the office

e) Missing three consecutive rneetings without , r"".ronu{,. .uur.

0 Incompetence during the period in office

8.4 Quorum

The Quorum lor the conduct olbusiness of the Roarcl is lnur,lenrhers inclrrding the Chairperson
or the person presiding over the Meeting.

8.5 Conflict of interest

The Regulations guiding the Fund provides that:

(a) A mernber who has an interest in any contract, or othel
at the rneeting and as soon as reasonably placticahle {
the fact thereof and shall not take part in the corrsider{
any questions with respect to the contract or other matt{
the rneeting during consideration of the matter.

a

a

a

matter present at a rneeting shall
fter the commencement. disclose
tion or discussion of. or vote on.
r. or be counted in the quorum of

xv
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(b) A disclostrre of interest made under suhparagraph (a) is to be recorded in the minutes of
the rneeting at'rvhich it is nrade.

(c) A rncmher of the Board who contravenes subparagraph (a) cornmits an olfence and is
liahle to inrprisontnent t'or a tenn rrol excceding six rnorrths. or to a fine not exceeding
one hundred thousand shillings, or both.

li.(r Boa r<l llcnr trncration

Thc board rcccived board sitting allor'vanccs in line with thc provisions olthe PFM Act.20l2
sec l9-5 (2). Total allowances paid to the board rnembers was Ksh. I I1.560.00

8.7 Tasks to hc accomplished

-l'hc lollowing arc the tasks to be accornplished in the FY 202312024

(i)
( ii)

Training and sensitising [..oan beneficiaries on Marketing.
Building the capacity of groups and cooperatives on accessing of Funds and funds
utilizations.

x\''t
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9. Management Discrrssion and Anal,t,sis

The Ftrnd started its operations alter the gazettentent ol'the Arnendment Act on l'r Augusl 2018.
For the start. thc Fund board resolved to start irnplernenting tnanclate I (providing access to
capital and financial facilities to nricro and srnall enterprises owned by the residents in the
Cotrnty). On inrplernentation of rnandate I, the Fund began with tinancing of Groups and
Cooperative Societies sole proprietors etc.

9. I Loan Dishrrrscment

The disbtrrsernent target fbr the FY 202212023 was Ksh 191.284,000.00 by June 30,1 2023. a
total of Ksh. 12.0-50,000.00 had been approved and disbursed. The approval was tbr 22 groups
and a cooperal.ive. and l9 sole proprietors.

Table 3: Loans Approved per Sub County

l'ig. 2: (Jrorrp and Coopcratir.c loan amorrnts <Jishursed per Suh Coun(r,

tySuh Coun Group Bencficiarics Cooperatives

So le

Pro priet
otI

No. of
(irorrps

Loan
Appmve
d

No. of
Coo pcrat
ivcs

Total Loans
Appmved

llahai 0 0 0 0 0
Kalolcni I.4-50.000 2 0 0 1.450,000
Kili{i Sorrth 100.000 I 0 100.000
Kilill North 7.420.000 t.t (r r"000.000 0 8.420.000
(ianzc 450.000 0 4 0 450.000
l\4alirrdi 1.480.000 J 4 0 I.480.000
Magarini 2-s0.000 0 2 0 250.000

Total I 1,r 50,000 l9 1' r,000,000 I 12,150,000
IT

I

I

xv

Loan Approvcd

0 0

0

0
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9.2 Loan Repayments.

Most of the loans issued to beneficiaries rvill be repaid in 24 months' equal instalments. The
beneticiaries were given one to three nronths' grace period before starting repayment. As at
-i0'r'.lttne 2023,a total of Ksh. 19.067,818.62. hacl been recovered on account of loan repayments.
-[he outstanding loan balance amounted to Ksh. 238,389,919.38.00

l'ablc 4: Loan rcpaymcnt pcrformance

Pa ra m eter 202012021 202U2022

Outstanding l-oan Balance (OLB) 204,302.590.00 244.975.774.00

I.oart Rcprayrrcrrls Reccivcd 18.074.40-3.00 .38. | -s0.107.00

238.389.919.38

I 9.067.81 8.62

9.3 Ma.ior Ilisks Associatcd lr ith the Fund

Given that risk taking is an inherent activity in our business, responsibility and accountability for
risk rnanagentent dwells at all levels within the orqanization, from the Advisory Board down
throrrgh the organisation lo each staflrnertrber.

i) Credit risk
'Ihe entity has exposure to credit risk. u,hich is thc risk that a counterpafty will be unable to pay
atltottllts in frrll when due. Managen'lclrt assesscs the credit quality of each customer. taking into
accourlt its financial posiliorr, past cxpcrience and othcr tactors. Individual risk limits are set
based on internal or cxtcrnal asscssnlent in accordancc with lirnits set by the Board.

\\,III

202212023

Thc entity's activitics exposc it to a varicly of firrancial risks including credit risk. The Fund's
overall risk tnatragetnent prograrnrne lbcuses on unpredictability of changes in the business
environtnent and seeks to rrrinimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its perfonnance
l'ry sctting acceptable levcls ol risk. The Fund does not hedge any risks and is working on
policies to ensure that cred it is extended to custorxers wlro conforlrr to Fund laid down
procedrrres.



9.4 I'hc Frrturc orrtlook of thc F'rrnd

l'he Fund has devcloped a three years'strategic plan which is guiciing the operations of the Fund
up to the year 2023.

The Ftrnd targets to incrcasc its outrcach hy conr ing up with nerv loarr products, reducing the
avera-qe loan tttnlaround tirne anrong other strategies. The Fund will be introducing Indiiidual
loan prodtrct. agribtrsiness loans irt the financial year 202312024 to make sure that capital goes
dircctly to the econotrry. More resources shall be directecl to loan recoveries to reduce the amount
in loan arrears and defhrrlters.

'l'he lirnd rvill be seeking to enter into strategic parlnerslrips which will contribute to the
attaining of the Fund's oh.iectives. l'he F'und will equally be seeking to source for other sources
of incorne streams to supplement the allocation lrom the county GJverrrrnent

xlx
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Kilili Counfi' Micro.finuncc (Wezasho) Fund
Annual Report and Financiat Statements for the ycar ended.lunc 30, 2023

t 0. Report of The Trrrstees

'l'he Roard strbmit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
.lunc 30. 2023 rvhich shorv the state of the I;urrd alfhirs.

a) Principalactivities

-l'he principal activities of the Fund are:

(i) To provide access to capital and financial facilities to micro and small enterprises owned
by the residents in the County.

( ii)

( iii)

'I'o supporl rlicro ancl srnall cntcrprises kr dcvclop linkages with large enterprises.

To facilitate marketing of products and services of rnicro and srnall enterprises owned by
residents in the county in l'roth domestic and international markets.

(i") l'o lacilitate investntent in srnall and micro enterprises oriented in comrnercial
in lrastrttctttrc strclt as busincss or inclustrial parks. stalls. rnarkets or business incubators
that rvill he heneficial lo thc enterprises.

(v) .l-o 
llrovidc bttsirtcss dcveloprnent services to rnicro and sntall enterprises, and generating

gainfirl sell'-enr ployrnent for the residents of Kilifi.

h) Rcsults

-l-he 
lestrlts o[the l,'und lor the year ended 30'h.lune 2023 are set out on page I

c) 1'rustccs

The tnernhers of the Board who served during the year are shown on page vi and vii There were
changcs in the Roard Menrbership during thc year. The entire Board term expired and new ones
rvere appointed. Florvever. thc position of the chairpcrsorr has heen filled yet.

d) Auditors

'l-hc Auditor Gcncral is rcsponsible lor the statutory arrdil of thc [;rrnd in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya arrd thc Puhlic Audit Acl 20 I 5.

Ry Order olthe Board

Ag. Boarrl (--hairma n

Kilifi Corrnty Microfinance (Wezesha) Fund
Dnte:

x\



K i I iJi Co u n Q' M ic rofi n u n c.e (WeTesh Q F un d
Annrral Report and Financial Statements for the vcar cnded .lune 30, 2023

I l. Statcmcnt of Management's Responsihilitics

Section 167 of the Ptrhlic Finance Managcment Act. 2012 requires that, at the end of each
financial year. the Adrninistrator of a (lotrnrv Public F-und (estahlished by the Kilifi County
Micro[lrrarrce (Wezesha) Ftrnd Act.20 l6 as amended in 2018) shall prepare tlnancial statements
lor the F'trnd in accordancc with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board.

l'he Administratorof the County Public Fund is responsihlc lor the preparation and presentation ol
the Ftrnd's llnancial slaternents. which give a true and lair view of the state of affairs of the Fund
lor and as at thc cnd of'the llnancial year ended on .lune 30.2023.1-his responsibility includes:

(i) Maintaining adeqttale flnancial rralragerrent arrangelnents and ensuring that these
continuc to he cllcclivc throrrghorrt llrc reporling pcriod:

(ii) Maintaining proper accoulrtirtg records. rvhich disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
tinrc the financial position of the Fund:

(iii) Designing. inrplernenting and rnaintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation
and lail presentation ol the financial statenrenls, and ensuring that they are free fi'om
rnaterial misstaternents. whethcr due to error or fraud;

(iv) Saftguarding the assets ot'the Fund;

(v) Sclccting and applying applopriatc accounting policiesl and

(vi) Makirrg accottnting cstintatcs lhat are rcasonablc in thc circultstances.

l'he Adntinistrator o[' thc County Public [;und accepts responsihility for the Fund's tlnancial
stalclllcllts. u'hich ltave hcerr prcprarcd using appropriatc accounting policics supported by
t'casottablc ancl prtrdcnt .itrdgcrlcnts and cstirnatcs. in conlirrnrity with Intcrnational Public Sector
Accotrnlirrg Standards (IPSAS). and in the rnanner required by the PFM Act.20l2. the Kilifi
(-'ounty Microllnarrcc (Wczesha) Fund Act,20 l6 as arnended in 20 18. l-he Administratorof the
ljtrtlcl is ol the opiniorr that the Fund's f inancial statenrerrts give a tnre and lair view of the state ol
l;utld's transactiorrs during the finarrcial yeal ended .Tune 30, 202.], and of the Fund's financial
position as at that datc. Thc Adnrinish'alor lirrlher confinl the completeness of the accounting
rccords rnaintained for the Furrd, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Fund's
firrancial statentertts as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

In preparing thc financial slatenrcnts. the Adrninistrator ol the County Public Fund has assessed
the Ftrnd's ability to conl.inue as a going concem and disclosed. as applicable. matters relating to
the trsc of'going concem basis of preparation ol the financial staternents. Nothing has come to the
atlention olthe Administmtor to indicate that thc Fund rvill not remain a going corlcem for at least
the ncxt twelve rnonths frorn the date olthis statenrent.

\\I
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Annual R rt and Financial Sfatemcnts for lhc vcar ended .lunc f0. 2023

Approval f thc finuncial statemcnts

'Ihe Fund ls

hehalf'by:
llnancial statcments were approved hy the Roar<l on 28th Septemher and signed on its

Administ tor of the Corrnty Puhlic Fund

xxlt
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KILIFI COUNW MICROFINANCE
(wEzESHA) FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lavyfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management AcL,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kilifi County Microfinance
(Wezesha) Fund set out on pages 1 to 41, which comprise of the statement of financial
position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of
changes in net assets, statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and

Report of the Auditor-General on Kilifi County Miuofinance (Ilezesha) Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:
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statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015.1have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of Kilifi County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fund as at 30 June, 2023, and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply with
the Public Finance ManagemenlAcl,2012 and the KilifiCounty Microfinance Act, 2016.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Presentation of the FinancialStatements

The non-financial information section of the financial statements indicates that Kilifi
County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fund was established by Kilifi County Microfinance Act,
2016. However, Section 4(1) of the Act provides that there is established a fund to be
known as the Kilifi County Microfinance Fund also to be known as the Mbegu Fund. The
name of the Fund indicated in the financial statements is therefore inconsistent with the
name cited in the Act.

Further, page numbering in the financial statements presented for audit was incomplete.
The page numbers were indicated up to page 21 and the rest of the pages did not have
page numbers.

ln the circumstances, the financial statements were not compliant with the Annual
Financial Reporting Template (Revised June, 2023), issued by the Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board.

2. lnaccuracies in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects other income of
Kshs.4,416,230 while the corresponding other income amount reflected in the statement
of financial performance was Kshs.505,600 resulting to unexplained variance of
Kshs.3,910,630. ln addition, the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts
reflects actual loans approved totalling to Kshs.11,500,000 while the corresponding loans
disbursements as reflected in the statement of cash flows and Note 12 to the financial
statements was Kshs.11,763,864 resulting to unexplained variance of Kshs.263,864.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the balances reflected in the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts could not be confirmed.

3. lnaccuracies in Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of cashflows reflects fund administration expenses of Kshs.5,240,367.
However, a recalculation of Note 9 to the financial statements resulted to Kshs.5,230,707
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resulting to unexplained variance of Kshs.9,660. ln addition, the bank reconciliation
statement for June, 2023 for the Co-operative Bank main account reflected balance as
per bank statement of Kshs.110,819,600 while the bank statements for the account
reflected balance as at 30 June, 2023 of Kshs.111,017,530 resulting to an unreconciled
variance of Kshs. 1 97,930.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.116J59,202 could not be confirmed.

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.3,918,216 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. However, the closing
dates for the current and prior financial years were incorrectly indicated in the Note as
30th June (previous FY) and 30th June (current FY) instead of 30 June, 2022 and
30 June, 2023 respectively. Note 6 also reflects cost of motor vehicles as at
30 June, 2023 of Kshs.319,000 which was computed based on cost of motor vehicles as
at 1 July, 2022 of Kshs.327,100 less insurance cost of Kshs.8,100.

Further, the reported net book values of the assets as at 30 June, 2022 and 30 June,
2023, as disclosed in Note 6 were the same balance of Kshs.3,918,216 implying that the
balances were incorrectly computed since values were expected to be different as a result
of depreciation of the assets. ln addition, the depreciation rates used were not disclosed
in the financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.3,918,216 could not be confirmed.

5. lnaccuracy in the Loans Receivable Balance

The statement of financial position and Note 5 to the financial statements reflects loans
receivable balance of Kshs.238,389,919, which includes loans disbursed during the year
under review of Kshs.12,269,464. However, the cash book for loan disbursements
reflected loan disbursements totalling to Kshs.13,286,400 resulting to unexplained
variance of Kshs.1,016,936. ln addition, the balance was computed based on loans
recovered during the year under review totalling to Kshs.19,067,819 while the cash book
for loan recovery reflected loans recovered totalling to Kshs.18,935,703 resulting to
unexplained variance of Kshs.132,1 16.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the loans receivable balance of
Kshs.238,389,919 could not be confirmed.
The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kilifi County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fund
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical

Report of the Auditor-General on Kilifi County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget and
actual on comparable basis of Kshs.128,230,630 and Kshs.120,416,230 respectively, resulting in
an under-funding of Kshs.7,8'14,400 or 60lo of the budget. Similarly, the Fund expended
Kshs.18,342,417 against an approved budget of Kshs.128,230,630, resulting to an under-
expenditure of Kshs.109,888,213 or 86% of the budget.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. Except for the matters described in
the Basis for Adverse Opinion section, I have determined that there are no other key audit
matters to communicate in my report.

Other Matter

Prior Year Audit Matters

Several issues were raised in the Auditor-General's report for 202112022 financial year.
However, the issues were not resolved and Management did not take any action to
address the recommendations on the prior year audit issues.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion, and Basis for Conclusion on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that public resources have not been applied
laMully and in an effective way.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kilifi County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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The underfunding and under expenditure may have negatively affected the planned activities on
service delivery to the intended beneficiaries.



Basis for Conclusion

Non- Repayment of Loans

The statement of financial position and Note 5 to the financial statements reflects loans
receivable balance of Kshs.238,389,919, out of which Kshs.143,775,957 was in respect
loan in arrears. As previously reported the loan arrears included an amount of
Kshs.30,589,256 issued to three hundred and fifteen (315)groups who had not serviced
the loans for over ninety (90) days and were therefore in default. ln addition, an amount
of Kshs.18,872,792 represented non-performing loans carried fonruard from prior years,
contrary to Regulation 1a(s)(a) of the Kilifi County Microfinance (Mbegu) Fund
Regulations, 2018 that states that a loan shall be considered to be in default when a
borrower is ninety (90) days late in repayment and all efforts to make him or her repay
have completely failed.

ln the circumstances, the recoverability of the loan receivables of Kshs.238,389,919 could
not be confirmed. ln addition, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that internal controls, risk management and
governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual

Report of the Auditor-General on Kilifi County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to u.nable the preparation of financial statements that are free from nraterial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the Fund's
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using applicable basis of accounting unless Management is
aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in

Report of the Auditor-General on Kili/i County Miuofinance (Wezesha) Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Management is also responsible for the submission of the Fund's financial statements to
the Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.



an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

a

a

o
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Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordancewith the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the PublicAuditAct, 2015and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financialstatements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.



a

a

a

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCP CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

Nairobi

22 February,2024
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('rr rrc n I l,ia hilitics

I .l 78.000

t,202.940
'l'otal 

Crr rrcnt t,ia hilitics
8]1i14" P3ye h lcs

It0,9.10)
Non-Crrrrent l,iahilitics
'l'ot:r l l,ilhilitics

2 .1li0 ()-l0

Rcr,olv irr l'r rrr < l I "1.1.756.85.1
2.3 t.216.85.i

F rr nrl anrl Accrnnulatcrl Srlr
-l-ota 

I licvolvin Ius

A cc trrn ru latcd Su rp lr rs t4.710.485

.158,.t67,.1.r8 217 2(12,I 5 I

15.9(r5.198

219.5't.1.{r9 t

Irq,,'

2..125.-s r 2

I

Nct Asscls

__-.t



K i I i /i C o u n t.1, lll i c r o.fi n o n c e ( ll/c z.c s h o ) F u n d
Annu al lleport and Financial Statcments for thc year cndcd .lunc 30,, 2023

15. St:rtcmcnt of Changes in Nct Asscts for the ycar cnded 30il'.lune 2023

I]:tl:rncc As At -10.lrrnc 202-1

l)ctcr i\fsuko
Arlnr in istrator of (hc [trrnrl

Ilussein Fon

Accou nta nt
l('PAK No: 19762

o

I 5. t 49..r88 246..186.-141Ilala nce As At I .lrrlr, 2021

Srrrplrrs/( l)clicil) l;()r lhc I)cri(xl

2.1t.2.r6.85.1

t{ I 5.810 fil 5.810

l;rrrr<ls Il ccc ivc<l I)rrrrnu lhc
Yca r

Ilalancc As Al .l0.lrrnc 2022 2.11.2.1(r.85.1 t 5.965.2e8 241.202.t51

2.1t .2.16.85-1 15,965.298 247,2{t2.t5lllalrncc As Al I .luly 2022

Srrrplrrs/( l)clicit ) lor thc l,criorl (1.,2s6,0t2\ (7,256,01.2\

112,520,000 1r2,520,000

liLrnds llcccivcd I)u ring thc
Ycar

Trade Payable (Not payable) 1,200 7,200

343,756,853 14,7tO,486 358,457,339

Revolving Fund

Revaluation

Reserve
Accumulated
surplus Total

Kshs Kshs



Kili/i Count's, Miuolinoncc (Wcz.csho) Fund
Annual Rcport anrl Financial Statemcnts for the year cn(led .Iunc 30, 2023

16. Statcnrcnt of (lash Florvs for 'l'hc Ycar E,nded 30 ,lrrnc 2023

l)c tc r Msuko

Atlnrinisl ralor of thc Fun<l

I I usscin Fo rlo

Accorrntant
I(ll'r\K No: 19762

4

(lash flows from operaling activities

llcccipts

I I l(r.000.000
-[rarrsl'crs 

fionr thc cotnrty Sovcrnrncllt

Ilcccipts ll'orn otlrer operaling activities
'f otal receipts

Pat'rrr cn ts

(2. rq7.-150)I (5.240.367)

(2. | 97,.150)

Irund adrrrinistration cxpcnscs ((icncral cxpenscs)

Nct cash flou's fronr opcrating activitics I t 0,759,6-1-j

(lash florvs fronr invcsting activities

(2.804.990)

19.067.8 t9

( r2.700)

:18. t50.:107

t0

ll
t2 ( I I .763.8(r4) ( 1.12.792.54 r )

Pttrcltasc ot'property. plarrt, cqu iprncnt

Loarr rcpavrr cnls

Loarr <l istrrrrscrncrrls paitl orrl

Loarr ovcrpaynrellt t'c filn(ls r3 (2 r 2.500)

(91,65.1.9.1J).r,295,765Nct cash flos's uscrl in invcsting activitics

(e6,8s2.281)

(.ash florvs fronr financing activities

l)rocccds lionr rcvolving lund receipts

Nct incrcnsc/(<lccrcase) in cash & cash

Ii t; rr iva lcn ts I t5.055,397
('aslr arrrl caslt cqrrivalcnls at lst .lrrly 2022

(.ash anrl cash crlrrivalcnls at .10'r' ,lunc 2023 .1 It6.t59.202

97.95(r.089

I,I0-1,805

,Note 2022-2023 20zt-2022

Kshs Kshs

Nct cash flo*'s rrsc<l in financing aclivities

t.t03sos 
I



Kilifi Counq, Microfinance (llexesha) Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

18. Statement of Comparison of Budget And Actuar Amounts For The period

90 0t96

I J.-10'/,,

Budget notes

Budget f<-rr FY :O22t2023

l. 'lhc fund rcceired its budgeted amount for the ]'car.Onc hundred and sixrcen million shillings (Kshs.116.000.000) in rs,o lranches i.e. Januan 2023 and
June 2023 fionr the Countv Governmenr of Kilifi (Depanment of Trade Tourism and Cooperarile Der elopmenr) resuhing inro underurilisarion of the fund
duc to late disburscments

The underutilizalion on account of lttans approYed. other income (inclusire of I\4anagemenr lees) antl total expenditure were occasioned b\' the follou.inr:
challenges:

a. The lerm of members of the Board expired during the period under revieu and rhese ;xlsition-< remained r.acanr lbr some monlhs.

b. A dccision had bcen madc for rhc lund lc) panncr u.ith Financial lnsrirutions. Ncgotiatrons Lrru,ccn rhc l.und and potc.ntral panncrs \\,crc
lengthl :nd timc consuming.

Rcvcnue Kr hs Ksh s Kshs hshr Kshs
J'ranslers From Courrlr Gor I I t6.000_000 I 16.000,(Ii0 I ()0o o

()thcr Incornc 8.i20.000 .r.9 t0.630 ll.:30.6r0 7.81t.4(,0

I 16.000.000

1.1 t(,.1i0 16 I to,,

I2{..110.{r{r(l J.9 r 0.6J0 t 2ti.2.10.6.t0 7.ut {.100 93.9 t'vo
'l'otal 

I ncolne

Ihpenscs

r 20.{ t 6.2.r0

Iund Administrarion
Iixpenscs ((leneral I-xpcnses )

and Assets Acquired 3.7:9.60{) _i.9 t0.630 7.640.2:(,

I]0.:90.400 (-) t:0.590..100

6.lt4:.4 i7

I 1.500.0r,0

797.3 l.:

i09.090..100
'l'otal l- r penrl ir u re lll..I0.(|00 3.910.6.10 128.1J0.6.10 109.tt88.1I !t8.341.4 t7

Surplus For Thc Pcriod 9:.l9-1.-Ill

-5

Orlglntl budget Adrurecltt FiEd budga
Acaurl or comprrrbh
b*b Pcrrorouca dif,crco(i

2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-243 2022-2023
I

+

l-oans Approved

I

9 :.io.o
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K i I i /i C o u n 11' ll i c ro fi n o n cc (ll/c1cs h o ) l: u rr d
Annrral Rcporl nnrl Financial Slatenrcnls for lhe ycar enderl .lnne 30. 2023

19. Notes lo thc Financial Stalemcnts

Significant Accounling Policics

l. Gcncral lnfornrntion

The Kilifi Cotrnty Microfinarrce (Wezesha) Fund was established by and derives its authority
arrd accountahility from the Kilifi County Microfinance Fund Act dated lOth June 2016.
[)uring the period under review. lhe Fund's name was changed to Kilifi County Microfinance
(Wezesha) I;trnd throtrgh an Acl of Kilifi Counly Asscrnhly. The FLrnd is wholly ovuned by the
(-otrnty Governmenl of Kilifi and is donriciled in Kenya. 'l'he lund's obiective is to provide
strppofl to Micro and Small fintcrprises operating within the County through provision of seed

ca1ri1nl. nrarket linkagcs and crcalion ofcnrployntent.

2. Slare mcnl of compliancc anrt hasis of prcparation

'l hc Iirtn<l's financial slalcnrents have heen prcparcd in accordance with and comply with

lnternational Puhlic Sector Accountirrg Standards (IPSAS). The financial statetnents are

prcscnlcd in Kcnya shillings. which is the lunctional and rcporting currcncy olthe Fund. The

accottrtling policies havc hcgr consistently applied to all the ycars presented. The financial

slatetttcnts hrvc hecn preparcd on the basis o[ historical cos1. unless stated otherwise. The

caslr flou' slalement is prepared using the direcl rtrethod. The financial statements are

plcparerl on accmal basis.

.1. Arloplion of ncs' anrl rcviscrl slanrlarrls

(i) New and atrrcnrle<l slan<lards and interpretations in issrrc hut not yel cf'feclive in the year
cndcd l0 .lunc l0ll

I PSAS 4l : l;inancial

I rtst rtutt cttts Applicahlc: t"r .lanrrary 2023

I'he oh.iective ol IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

rcporling of financial assets and liahilities that will present relevant

and uselul inlorntation lo users of financial staternents lor their

assessnreltt ol' the arrrounts. liming and uncertainty of an Entity's

frrt rr re cash flows.

IPSn S 4l providcs rrscrs ol financial statenrents with more useful

inlbnration than IPSAS 29. by:

'l

Effective and lmpact.



.A n nual RcP,9I13I!r_I!lIc,{ llr lcrncnls for lhc ycar cndcrl ,tune 30,2023

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash llows and thc ohicctivc for which the asset is held:
. Applying a single lbrward-look irrg expected creclit loss

rrrodcl that is applicablc to all financial instnrments sub.iect to
inrpairnrcnl lcstingl and

. Applying an intproved hedge accounting model that

hroadens the hedging an.angentents in scope of the guidance.
-Ihe nrodel develops a strong link between an Entity's risk

nranagetrent strategies and the accounting treatment for
instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

. Applying a singlc classifi calion and nleasurement model for

'l'hc oh.icclivc ol this Stancrarcr is to inrprove the rclevance. faithful
rcprcsctrtat ivcncss arrd colnparahility ol the information that a

reporlirrg Entity providcs in its financial statenrents about social

henefits. -l-he inlorrnaiion provicrcd shourcr hcrp users of thc financiar
statentcnts and eencral-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) Thc nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity:
(h) l-hc kcy lcalrrrcs of thc opcraliorr ol thosc social bcnefil schemes:

and

(c) Thc irnpact of such social benefits provided on the Entity.s
financial pcrl'orrnancc. financial positiorr and cash flows.

Ia n rr a n, 202.1IPSAS 42: Social

Ilcncfils

Arncndrncnls to

Olhcr IPSA S

rcsrrlting fi.onr IPSAS

41. I;inancia I

Irrslrunrcnls

Applicahlc: l'l .lanuary 202.1

a) Arncndrncnls to IPSAS 5. to update thc guidance relaled to the

contpotlcnls of horrorving costs which rverc inadveftentlv

orrritted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

h) Arnendrnenls to IPSAS -i0. r.cgarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk rvhich rvere inadvcrtentlv omittcd
rvhcn Il)SAS 4l rvas issuecl.

It

K i I i./i (' o t t t r t.y M i c r o.fi n o n c.c ( ll/ c les h o ) F u n tl

H Elfective date and impact

A pplica hlc: I



Kilili Cottnty Microfinnnca (Wez.esha) l;untl
Annual [icporl and l,-ina ncia l Slalemcnls lrrr lhc vcar cnrlcrl ,lune ]0. 202.l

c) A rtcnrlrncnls lo IPSAS -30. to update the guidance lor

accorrrrling lor financial guarantcc contracls which were

inadvcrtcnlly omiltcd whcn IpSAS 4l was issued.

Amendnrents to IPSAS .i3. to updare the guiclance on classifying

financial irrstrurncnts on initiar adoption ol accrual basis IpSAS

which wcrc inadvcrtcntly onritted when IpSAS 4l was issued.

( ) thcr inrprovcnrcnts

lo II'SAS

Applicuhle l" .lon uory 202-|

c lP,\/S 22 Di.sclo.srtrc o/.Finonciol lnfbrmatiott ohout the General

Got'arnntanl Scclor.

Amcndrncr.rrs to rcfcr lo thc lalest Svst,, of National Accorrnts (SNA

l0o8).

c ll',\tlS -)9. [:,n1tlo.tu,t: Bantfit.s

Now dclctcs thc tcrnl contl.rositc social security [renefits as it is no

loneer defined in IPSAS.

. I PSAS 29:. Financial instnrments: Recognition and

Mcas rl rcm cn t

Standard no lorrgcr includc<l in thc 201 i IpSAS handhook as it is now

supcrsedcd hy TPSAS 4l rvhich is applicahlc fronr 1., .lanuarv 202,1.

(ii) Nerr atrl
cndad 30

a nr c ndetl s I andords a nd
.ltrnc 2023.

inte rJtrcta lions in is.trrc hut not t,el cf/bctive in lhe t,ear

IPSAS 4:I /pplicohtc l't.lanttort 202 5

Thc slandard scts out the principles for the recognition.

nleasrrremenr. prescntation. arrd disclosrrre of leases.'l-he ohlectivc

is to enstr'e lhat lcssccs and lcssors pro'idc relevanl inforrnation in

a ntanncr that laithlully rcpr.esents those transactions. -Ihis

irrlorrrraliotr qivcs a basis lor rrscrs of financial slatcntcr.tts lo asscss

thc cflccl that lcascs ha'c on thc financial posilion. financial

pcrf'orrnance and cashflows ol'an l.intity.

The ncw standard rcquircs clltilies lo recognise, measure and

I

date and impact:



Kilifi County Miuo.finoncc (liYezesho) F und
Annual Rcporl and F-inancial Slatemcnls for thc year ended .lrrne 30, 2023

present information on right of trse assets and lease liabilities

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Asscts I leld

lor Sa le and

l)isconlinrrcd

Opcratiorrs

Assets that rneet the criteria to he classified as held for sale to he

rncasulcd al thc lowcl of can'ying amount and fair value lcss costs

to scll and thc dcprcciation of suclr asscts to ccasc arrd:

Assets that nreet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

prcsentcd separatcly in the statement of t'inancial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statenlent of fi nancial perlormance.

Applicahle I't .Ionuo4t 2025

The Standard req u ires.

( iii ) E,a rl1' adoption of sta nda rds

'l'hc Kilill county Microfinance (wczesha) Fund did not early - adopt any new or amended
standards in the firrancial year.

t0



Kili./i Counl.y Miuofinance (llczcsho) Fund
Annrrel Rcporl and l,-inancial Slalemcnls for lhc ycar cntlcd.lune 30, 2023

2. Sttnrnrar.r' of Significant Accorrnting Policics

a) Revcnrrc rccogn il ion

i, Revcnrrc from non-cxchange transaclions

'l-ransfers from olhcr governmcnl en(itics

Rcvcnucs fiorn non-cxchange transactions with other govcnrrnent entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control ol the asset (cash. goods, services and property) if
the lransfcr is free lrom conditions and il is probable thal the econouric benefits or service
potcnlial rclatc(l lo thc assct will llow to the cntity and can be measured reliably.

. Ilcvcn rr c fronr cxch:rngc lrtnsaclions

lntcrcst in co rrr c

lntcrcst itrcorttc is accrucd using the ellective yield nrcthod. The elfective yield discounts
estimated luture cash receipts through the expected lile of the financial asset to that asset's
net carrying amount. I'he method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine
interest incorrre each period.

Dividcnds

I)ividends or sinrilar distributions rnust be recognizcd when the shareholder's or the Entity's
right to receive payments is established.

Ilcn 1a I incorne

Rcnlal incontc arising lrorn opcrating leases on invcstment properties is accounted for on a
slraight-linc hasis over the lease lcrms and included irr revcnue.

h) Ilrrtlgct in fo rrn:rl ion

Thc original hudect for ?Y 2022-2023 was approvcd by the Fund Board. Subsequent
rcvisions or aclditional appropriations were nrade to thc approved budget in accordance with
spccific approvals ft'orn lhe approprialc authorities. 'l'he additional appropriatiorrs are added to
the original hudgel hy lhe entilv upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude
tlte ll nal hudget.

-l'he Kilifi Cotrnty Microfinance (Wczcsha) Frrnd's hudget is prepared on a dilferent basis to
thc actual incomc and cxpcndilurc discloscd in thc financial statemcnts. Thc financial
slaternents are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses
in the slatement of f''inancial performance. wlrereas the hudget is prepared on a cash basis. The
alrt()r.rnts in the llnancial slatcnrents rvere rccasl lronr the accnlal basis to the cash basis and
rcclassifie<l hv prcscntatiotr to lrc otr thc sanrc hasis as lhc approvcd hudgcl. A conrparison of
budgct antl actual atnounts, prcparecl on a conrparablc hasis to thc approvcd budget. is thcn

l)rcscntc(l in the staterncrrt ol cotnparison of budget and actual amounts.

ll



K i I ifi (' o t t t t t.y ll i c r o.fi n a n c c ( lY cry s h a ) F- u n d
Annrral Rcporl and Financial Slatcments for the vear cndcrl .lunc 30, 2023

Sunrmary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continrred)

ln addition lo thc Rasis dilfcrencc. adjustnrents to anlounts in the financial statements are also
made for diflerences in the lormats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of
the financial statements and the approved budget.

n stalcnlent to reconcile the actual anrounts on a comparable basis included in the statement
ol'contparison of budgct and actual arnounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under section xxx of these financial statetnents.

c) Properl,1,. planl and cqrripmcnl

All property. plant and equipmenl are stated at cost iess accumulated depreciation and
intpairment losses. Cost includes expenditurc lhat is directly attributable to the acquisition ol
thc itents. When significant parts of property. plant and cquipmenl are required to be replaced
at intervals. the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
dcprcciates lhem accordingly. Likewise. when a maior inspection is performed, its cost is

recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognilion criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incr.u'red. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
or norninal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

d) I nlnngihlc Asscts

lntangihlc asscts acquired scparately are initially recognized at cost. l'he cost of intangible
asscts accluired in a non-exchangc tlansaction is lhcir fair value at the date ol the exchange.
l"ollowing initial rccognition. intangible assets are carried at cost Iess any accumulated
arttorlization atrd accumulated inrpairnrelrt losscs. Internally generated intangible assets.
cxcluding capitalizcd dcvclopnrcnt costs. arc not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditule is incurred.

l-he uselirl lifc olthe intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

e) I nveslment propcrly

Ittvesltnent properlies are mcasrrred initially at cost. inclrrding transaction costs. l'he carryin-e

antottnt includes thc replacement cost of conrponents ol an cxisting investnlent property at thc

timc thal cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-
day ntaitrtcttattce ol an investrttcrrt property. Investnrcnt propert-v acquired through a non-

cxchange transaction is nreasured at its lair value al the date ol acquisition. Investment
propcrlics are derecognized either u,hen they have been disposed ofor when the investment

l)ropcrly is pcrnrancnlly withdrawn lrorn use and no future ccorrom ic benefit or seryice
potential is expected fronr its disposal. The diffbrence between the net disposal proceeds and

thc carryine arnounl ol the asset is rccognized in the strrplus or deficit in the period of de-

rccognition.

t2



KiliJ'i County fi'licrofinoncc (lYczcsho) P und
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Srrnrnrara of Significanl Accorrnling Policics (Continucd)

l) l"ina ncial insl rrrmcnls

lPSn S 4l addresses the classification. nreasurerrrcnt and de-recognition of financial assets

and financial liahilitics. introduccs new nrlcs fol hedgc accounting and a new irnpairment
rnodel lor financial assets. n financial instrunrcnt is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asscl ol onc cntity and a financial liahility or cquity instrrrment of anothcr entity. At initial
rccognition. thc cntity lreasurcs a tlnancial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or
niinus. in the case ofa financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through surplus or
deficit, transaction costs that are directly altributable to the acquisition or issue of the

firrancial asscl or firrancial liability.

Financinl asscts

Classification of financial asscts

'l-hc Kilifi Ciotrnty Microfinancc (Wczesha) I;und classifics its llnancial assets as subsequently

tncasurcd at atnortiscd cost. lair value through net assets/ cquity or lair value through surplus

and deficit on thc hasis of hoth the enlity's rnanagemenl model for financial assets and the

cotrtractLtal cash flow charactcristics ol the llnancial assel. A flnancial asset is measured at

atrtonized cost rvhen the financial assel is held rvithin a lnanagelnent model wlrose oh.jective

is to hold financial assets in ordcr to collect conlractual cash florvs and the contractuai terms

ol'the financial asset give rise on specificd dates to caslr flows that are solely payments of
principal and inlercst on the principal orrtstanding. A financial assel is measured at fair value
throtrgh net assets/ cquity if it is held within the titaltaqentent model whose ob.jective is

achieved hy hoth collecting contracftral cashflows and selling financial assets and the

contrac(ual lcrrrts of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solcly payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. A financial
assct shall bc nreasured at lair value through surplus or deficit unless it is measured at

atrroltizcd cosl or lair value throuqh nct assets/ eqrrity unlcss an entity has made irrevocahle
clcction at inilial recognition lor particular investmenls in cquity instrurnents.

Srrhsequcnt mcaslrrcment

llascd on (he busincss nrodel and the cash flow characterist ics. the entity classifies its

financial asscts into atrtoflizcd cosl or fair valuc catcgories lor financial instruments.

Movcntcnts in lair valuc are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity
suh.icct to ccrlain critcria heing ntct.

ri



Kilifi Coun6, Micro.finonce (Wczcsha) Fund
Annual Rcporl an<l [.'inancia] Slatcmcnls for thc ycar cndcd.hrnc.10, 2023

SunrnrRry of Significant Accounting Policics (Continucd)

Amortizcd cost

Finarrcial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest. and that are not designated at fair value

through surplus or dct'icit. are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument
that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from
thcsc f'inancial assets is included in finance income using the cffective interest rate method.

Fair valuc through net assets/ equify

Financial asscts that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and lor selling the

financial asscts. where the assets' cash flows represent solely payrnents of principal and

intcrest. are tneasured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying
atnount are taken through net assets. except lor the recognition of inrpairment gains or losses.

interest rcvenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in
surplus/de ficit. Itlterest incorne lrom thesc financial asscts is included in firrance incornc
using thc effective interest rate method.

Fair valrrc through surplus or deficit

l:inancial assets thal do not nreet the criteria for amortized cost ot' lair value through net
assets/ equity are nreasured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where
thc cntity managcs financial asscts with the ob.jective ol realizing cash flows through solely
thc sale of the assets would result in a f-air value through surplus or deficit rnodel.

Trn<le and olher receivahles
-I 

rade and othcr receivables are recognized al fair values less allowances for any uncollectible
atrtounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for inrpairment on a continuing basis. An
cstintate is tnadc of dotrhthrl rcccivahles hascd on a rcvicw ol all outstanding arnounts at the

1,ear end.

lnrpairmcnl
'I'he entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis. the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated
rvith its financial assets carried at anrortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The
cn(ity rccognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporlirrg date. Critical estirnates
and significant judgments made by managernent in determining the expected credil loss
(I:CL) arc set out in Note xx.

t4



Kilili County Microtinancc (ll/ezesha) Fund
Annual Reporl and F'inancial Slalcmcnts for thc ycar endcd .lune 30. 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

F-inancial liabilities

Classification
'I'hc enlity classifies its liabilities as sutrsequently measr.rred at amortized cost except for
financial liabilities nteasrrred through profit or loss.

S) I nvcnlorics

lnventory is nreasured al cost upon initial recognition. l'o the extent that inventory rvas

received through non-exchange transactions (lor no cost or lor a nominal cost). the cost of tlre
inventory is its fair value at the date ol acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted
for. as lollows:

), Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

)' Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a propoftion
of nrarrufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
horrowing costs

Altcr initial rccognition, inventory is measurcd at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Ilowever. to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for
a nontinal charge. lhat class of inventory is nreasured at the lower of cost and curent
rcplacenrcnt cost.Nct realizable value is the estinrated sellirrg price in the ordinary course of
operations. less tlre estimated cosls ol conrpletion and the estirnated costs necessary to make
the sale, cxchange. or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed
lor utilization or consumption in the ordinary coursc oloperations olthe Entity.

h ) P rovisions

Provisions are rccognized when Kilifi county Microfinance (wezesha) Fund has a present
oblieation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past everrt. it is probable that an outflow of
rcsottrccs cmhodying econontic benefits or service potential will he required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be rnade ol the amount of the obligation. Where the
[:.ntity cxpects some or all of a provision to he reinrtrursed. lor example. under an insurance
cotltract. thc rcintbursernent is recognizcd as a separatc asset only when the leimbursentent is
virtually cerlain. 1'he expensc relating to any provision is presented in the statement of
financial pcrlornrarrce net of any reirnbursement.

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that
mcet the eligibility criteria. ii) rnitigate the eflects of social risks and iii) Address the need of
socicty as a whole. The entity lccognises a social benefit as an expense lor the social benefit
schctnc at lhe samc timc that it recogniscs a liability. The liability for the social benefit
scheme is tneasured at the hest estimale of the cost (the social henefit payments) that the

enlity will incur in fulfilling the present obligarions represented by the liability.

r5
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K i I ifi C o u t t l.y' M i c r o.fi n o n c c ( Ll/ czes h n ) F u n d
Annual Rcporl and F-inancial S(alcnrcnts for lhc vcar endcrl .lunc 30. 202.1

Sunrnrarry of Significanl Accorrnting Policics ((iontin ucd)

.i) (iontingcnl liahilit ics

-l'hc Kilifi Corrnty Microfirrancc (Wezcsha) I;und docs nol recognize a contingent liability but
discloscs dctails of any contingencies in thc notes to the financial statements, unless the
possihility of an outflow of resources emhodying econornic benefits or service potential is
Icn'totc.

Conlingcnt assets

Ihe Kilif i Counly Microllnancc (Wezesha) Iiund docs nol recogrrize a contingent asset, but
discloses details of a possible asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-
occurrence of onc or rnore uncertain lirture events not wholly within tlre control of the Entity
in the noles to tlte financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure
that dcvcloprnents are appropriatcly reflecled in the financial statements. If it has become
virtually certain that an inflow of econonric henefits or service potential will arise and the
assct's valuc can be nreasured reliably. the asset and the related rcvenue are rccognized in the
financial statements ol the period in rvhich the change occrrrs.

k) Nalrlrc and prrrpose of rescrvcs

-l'hc Kilifi Counly Microfinancc (Wczcsha) Fund crcates and maintains rcserycs in tcrrns of
slrccific rcqtrircmcnts. lintit.t, to ,sttrlc llrc rcsentes noinloincrl ond oppnrytriale policics
odoplcd.

l) Changcs in accorrrrting policies anrl cstimates

'l'hc Kilifi ('()rrnty Microfinancc (Wezesha) Fund recognizes the ellects of changes in
accounting policy rctrospcct ive ly. Thc cflects of changes in accounting policy are applied
prospect ivcl1, i I rctrospect ivc app I ication is irnpract ical.

nr) I',nrJrlovcc bcncfils - Rclircmcnt hcncfil plans

-l-he Kilifi County Miclofinance (Wezesha) Fund provides retirernent benefits for its
cntployees and directors. Dcfined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under
which an cntity pays fixcd contributions into a scparate entity (a fund) and will have no legal
or constructive ohligation to pay lurther contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
asscts lo pay all cnrployee bencfits relating to enrployec service in tlre current and prior
pcriods. Thc contrihutions lo hrnd ohligations for lhe payrnent of relirement benefits are
charged against incorne in the year in which they lreconre payable.

I)cfirred hcncfit plans are post-crnployrnenl henefil plans other than defi ned -contribution
plans. 'l'lrc tlclincd henefit lunds arc actuarially valucd tri-annually on the projected unit
crcdil nrethod hasis. Deficits identitlcd are recovcred through lurnp sum payrnents or
increased lirlure contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The
r:ontributions and lurnp sunr paynrents reduce the post-ernploynrent henefit obligation.

l(r



Kilifi County Miuofinoncc (Wezcsho) Fund
Annual Rcporl and l.'inancial Slalcmcnls for thc vear enderl ,Iunc 30, 2023

Summary of Significnnt Accounting Policics (Continued)

n) Forcign cu rrcncy transactions

'fransactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted lor at the ruling rate ofexchange on
the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foleign currency are
rcported at the statenrent of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on
that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlemerrt of creditors. or from the reporting
of creditors at rates dilferent lronr those at which lhey were initially recorded during the
period. arc recognizcd as income or expenscs in the period in which they arise.

o) Ilorrowing cosls

l]orrowing costs are capitalizcd against qualilying assets as part of propcrty. plant and
eqtriprnenl. Srrch borrowing costs are capitalized over lhe period during which the asset is
heing acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when
constructiolr of'the asset is conrplete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of
fi nancial perforrnance.

p) Relaled pa rties

l'he Kilifi county Microfinance (wezesha) Fund regards a related parry as a person or an
cntily with the ability to exert control individually or.iointly, or to exercise significant
infltrence over the Entity. or vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as related
partics and conrprise the directors. the CEO and senior managers.

q) Cash and cash equivalcnts

(lash and cash cquivalents cornprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-tenn deposits on
call and highly liquid investtrtcttls with an original nraturity of three months or iess. which are
readily convcrtihlc to known anlounls of cash arrd are sub.ject to insignilicant risk of changes
in valtre. Bank account balances include anlounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at
various comrnercial banks at the end of the financial year'. For the purposes of these financial
statelttenls. cash and cash equivalents also include sholt term cash imprests and advances to
atrllrorised puhlic officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at
lhc cnrl o['thc financial ycar.

r) Cornparnlivc figrrrcs

Wltcrc tteccssary comparativc figures lor the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigurcd to conlorm to the required changes in presentation.
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Kilifi County MicroJinoncc (tlezesho) Fund
Annrral Report and Financinl Slatemcnls for lh e ycar ended.Iune 30. 2023

Srrmmnry of Significant Accounting policics (Continucd)

5. Significnnt jurlgnrents and sources of eslimation uncertainty
-l'hc 

prcparalion of the Kilifi County Microfinancc (Wezcsha) Fund's financial statements in
conlormity with IPSAS rcqrtit'cs rlrartagcrnerrt lo rnake judgments. cstimates and assumptions
that alfcct the reporlcd alnounts of revenues, expenses. assets and liahilities. and the
tlisclosttrc ol'contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty
aborrt these assttmptions and estimates could result in orrcn-"s that require a material
ad.itrstment to thc carrying anlo.rnt olthe asset or liability alfected in future periods.

State all.iudgements, estinrates and assumptions made e.g.

a) l)stintales and assumptions -
'Ihe key asstlnlptions concerning thc Future and other key sources of estinration uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
artlounts of assets and liahilities within the next financial y.ur. ,rJ described below. The['ntity hascd its assurnptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
linancial stalcments were prepared. Flowevcr. existing circumstances and assumptions about
lirtrrre devcloplncnts rnay change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of'thc F,ntity. Strch changes are rellected in tlre assuntptions when they occur. IpSAS
r.140.

b) llscftrl lives and residlral vahrcs

'['he usehrl lives and residtral values ofassels arc assessecl using the lollorving indicarors to
inlorrn potential lulurc use and value frorn clisposal:

D 'l'hc condition of thc assct bascd on the asscss,rcnl olexperts employed by the Entity

D' 'l'hc naturc oltlte asset. its susceplibility and aclaptability to changes in technology and
proccsses

) l'hc natrrrc of the processes in rvhich the asset is cleployed

D Availahility of lunding to replace the asset

! Ohangcs in thc rnarkct in relation to the asset

c) Provisions

Provisions were raised and ntanagement determined an estirnate based on the information
availablc.

I)rovisiotls are nreasured at the nranagement's hest estirnate of the expenditure required to
seltlc the ohligation at the reporting date and alc discor.rnted to presenl value where the ellect
is rnaleria I.

Itt



K i I i./i C o u n t.1' M i c r o.fi n o n c e ( ll/e 7c s h o ) F u n d
Artnrral Ilcporl anrl Iiinancial Statcnrcnls for thc ycar cnded .lunc 30, 2023

6. Notcs To Thc Financial Sta(crrrcnts Continucd

l. Transfcrs fronr Corrntv Govcrnnrcnt

Translers lronr County Govt. - January 2023
'l'ransfers fronr County Govt. - June 2023

[]nconditional Development grants

'lirta I | 16.000.000

2. Other inconre I\'l a na cmcnt Fecs

.1. [.lsc of (]oorls anrl Se n,ices drr rin criod enrlcd 30.6.2022 Rcfcr to A end ix I

Board Allowances

58.000.000

-s8.000.000

Scptcrnhcr 2022

Octoher 2021

24.600

250.000

Novcrnhcr 2022

I)cce'rnhcr l0l2
8l .000

t20.000

lanrrary 202.i -30.000

l;cbruarl' 202-i

March 2023 2,372.600

36.600April 202-l

May 2023 707.400

772.400

1'oll I Mnnagcnrcnl Fccs 505.(r00

.lrntc l0f.l

3,889.000

Telephone, Telex. Facsimile and Mobile Phone Services I _s t.200 13 9,2 00

767.050 200,99 5Catering Services (receptions), Accommodation, Food, Drinks

Travel Costs (airlines, bus, railway, mileage allowances, etc.) I.853.350 372,550

Refined Fuels and Lubricants for Transport t2,800 156,900

| | 1..s60 2 43,300

593.0 t0 879,340Daily Su bsistence Allowance

t9

Insert Current f,"f lnsert Comparative FY

Kshs

2o;d2,-2023 2021-2022

Ksh's

2022r23 202tD2
Kshs-IGhs.



Kili/i Count.y Miuo.finoncc (Wczcsho) Fund
Annrral Reporl and Financial Slatcments for the r"ea r ended .f une 30, 2023

Confere nces and Seminars

4. Cosh ond cosh equivolenls os ol 30rh June 2022

5. l,o:rns Rcccivahlc

l .oan ovcrpayrnenl rc fit nd
-l-olal l,oans Ilcccivahlc as al J01r'.lrrnc 202-1

700

I r2.500

258.200 2 5 0.000

3 9,780

Training Expenses

Bank cha rges and commissions

Log Book Tra nsfer Charges

t5.900

37 ,400

1 1,950

General Office Supplies(papers, pencils, small office equipment)

Supplies and Accessories for Computers and Printers

Ma rketing Activities

Of f ice Drinking Water 2 8.150

20,475

380.250

328.410

2 r.050 12,000Routine Maintenance

Strategic l'lan Consu llanc;

KlrllS ('ertificat ions and 'l rain ins

Slrnle'gic plan l.arrnch

r 3.920
Tota I

Poslagc

Puhl icalions ;tn(i (iazcttctncnt

5.2-10.707 3,073,I 90

Co-operalive Rank of Kenya - Main Account
0il4169t94200 71).,077,529 (4. t0 I .684)

(lo-operativc Rank ol Kenya -Adnrinistration Account
0l l4l(r9l9410l
(-o-opcrativc []ank of Ke nya Recovery Accourrt
0t 14169194202

Ilank-('GK Main Account Kch 4.999.640

63.031

5,403

5.1q8

5. I-58.408

73.600 41.883K(lMl: M-Pcsa I'aybill No.5(r4 I I l

'I'ola l (lrrsh Anrl (lash liqrrivalcnts r r6.t59.203 l,l 03,805

l,oans l)isbrrrscrl irs at 30tr',lunc 202-1

[,oans Ilccovcrc(l durin g thc Ycar

257.245.238

( re.067.819)

283. r26,08 r

(38. r 50.307)

20

2-18.:189.9 t 9 244,975,17 4

2q6.q!1

llqi'J_
327.9t0

202t-2023 2021-2022

T Kshs Kshs

2021-2022



Kilili County* Microtinance (llexesha) Fund
Annual Repot1 and Financial Stalements for lhe yea r ended J une 30, 2023

Noles To The Financiat Statements (Continued)

6. Property, planl and equipment

I rans lers'Ad usl.ments

.4t -10 ,lunc 21122

Al l''.luh 2022
Additions
Lesa : lnsurance cost

l)is sals
'l-ran 

s l'e r/Ad ustntents
Ar 30'r',lunc 2023
I)r rcciation And Im oirmcnt
Ar i''Juh 2021

l)c rccrattOn

Inr atnltent
Ar 30' Ju ne 2022
Al I'r ,)ul\ 2022
I)c rec r atlon
I)is osals
lnr rmtc|lt
'I 

rans leri,\ri uslrllenl
..\r -10'h .lu nc (Current l'\'
\ct llook Yalucs
Ar -10r .lunr I)rcr iuous FY
At -10' .lunc (lurrcnt F'l'

At I '' .lu 2(:t2t 4?7,485 1.004.720 1,985 712
,,\ddirions 327 ,tOO

339,800
Dis rsals

327 ,100 47i,485 1 .OO4,i 20 2,325,572
32i,100 477,485 1,0O4,i20

2,445,990 2,485.990
8.100

319 000 4'i 7 485 3 490 710 516,20; 034 2

63,8 0 0 71,623 698,142 885.r 86

63,800 -l_
255.200 405.862 2,;92,568 464.586 3 918.216
2 55.2 00 405.t'62 2.;92 461.58668 3,9 18: ',t 6

ll

Motor
Furniture rnd

Iitiines
. Computers and

oflice equiDment
Kshs Kshs

503,507 __
12.100

516,207

516,207 2,325,512

(8. r 00)

(-)

Is'r,62'r )

--..1 (71,6231 (6e8,1421 .l (s1,62| (88s.r86) _



Kilifi Cortnt.r' Micro/inonce (|4/ezesha) Fund
,4nnrtol ralxrt ond Finrtnciol ,stotemcnts .fbr thc tcor cndcd ,lune 30, 2023

Notcs lo lhc Financial Stalemcnls (Conlinued)

7. Loans Payablc

8, Accrucd Ex nses

I-oans Payahle 1.446.000

I,,t46.000

llclirndahlc I)cposits

1.202.940Accrued F.x penses

Tolnl Trarlc Anrl Other Pa ablcs r.202.940

2021-2022

Kshs

'f olul_ Loa,ns l)ut'ir hle



K i I i /i C o r r n t.r, M i c ro fi n a n c e Ql/ ezes ha ) F u n d
Anntnl reporl ond Financiol .stolenrcnts.for the .t'car ended,ltne 30. 2023

Nolcs l'o Thc l.-inancial Slalements (Continued)

9. Cash ()rrtflorv from () c ra I ions

I'olul 5.240.-167 3 073. r 90

10. Asscls Cash ()rrtflow rluring thc Financial Ycar 2022/2023

ASSET AMOUNT

honc. Tclcx, Facsinrile and Mohilc Phone ServicesTclc 15 t.200 139.200
('atcring Scrviccs (reccptions). Accornmodation. Food.
Drinks 767.050 200.995

r.88 r.950

t2.800

372.550

156.c)00

'['ravcl Costs (lirlines. bus. railway. nrileage

Refincd Frrcls and [.rrhricants lor Transport

lJoard A Ilorvanccs

allowances. etc.)

I I 1.560 243.300

I)ailv Suhsislence A llorvan ce 467.28(l 879.340

97.130Sta ff Lrrnch A llou,anccs

('on lercnccs and Scnr inars 700

258.200 250.000

cs and comrnissions

-fra inin scsc -l:I
[]ank cha t5-900 39.780

37.400

18.350 r l.950
(icncral Officc S upp lics( papers. pencils. snrall olllce
cqu ipnrcnt)

Olllce l)rink ing Watcr
I lloI,O ok -frans lcr ('har

SLI lics and Accessories lor (lorn trlers anrl [)rin ters

186.094

790,-1 l -1

20.4 r5

3 80.2-50

i27.9 I0

2 r-050

:j28.410

r2.000
Kl:llS ('crtificalions and I rainin_e

Routine Maintcnancc

Strltcgic I)larr Consullarrcy

\4arketing A ctivilies

St ratcgic plarr [.arrnch

Puhlicat ions and Cazettemcnl

I'osl agc

t3.920

Sr-rpply of Motorcycle
Plrrchase Of La pl ops

TOTAL

319,000

2,804 990
2.485.990

2V22n3 202U22

Kshs. Kshs.

l



K i I i /i (- o u n t.t' M i c r o/i n o t t c c ( Ll/ cz cs ho ) [; u n d
tlnrrtnl report ond Financiol stalencnt.s fbr tht, ycar andcd,lttnc -10. 2023

Noles To Thc Financial Statcmcnts (Continucd)
I I. Loan llcpavmcnts during the period un(lcr revicw

Kll,lFI cotrNTY MlcRot'tNANCE (MBIIGU) FUNt)

12. Loans l)ishrrrscd Net of Managemcnt Fccs

559,635.33

I )er a ils
Loarrs [)isbrrrscd

13. Loan Ovcrpaymcnt Refirnds

12.269.464
(_s05.600)

I 1,76.1,864.00

2022-2023
162.500
50.000

2 t 2.500

136.681..54
202t-2022-ltl

(3.889,000)
t32,192.541

l\{onth
Fchrua 2023
N4arch 1023

TOT^ l,

14. l)cpreciation an<l Amorlizllion I,,xpcnsc

-l'ola 
I

2{t2t-2022

I,OAN REI'AYMEN'T TOR TIIE YI'AR IiNI)IiI).]O.ItINE 202]
MONTH RECOVERY A/C M PESA PAYBILI. MArN A/C AOM|N A/C

)ul-22 879,7 37 .OO 1,463,814.00 2,283,551.0O

Aug-27 553,070.00 12,500 2,061,255.OO

se p-2 2 1,069,410.55 1,3 78,3 51.00 2,447,777.65
Oct-22 683,809.3 3 1,421,2 58.00 2,LO5,O77.31

Nov-22 750,5 2 5.33 1.078,078.00 1,838,603.33

Dec-22 563,374.33 1,126,671.O0 10,000.00 1,700,045.33

Jan-23 447 ,284.33 1,192,727 .O0 13,000.00 1,553,011.33

s 4 3,806.3 3 935.256.00 10,000.00 1,489,062.33Feb.23

Mar-23 4 48, 144.3 3 786,405.00 10.000.00 11,000.00 1,255,s49.33

Apr-23 350,567.33 562,169.00 18,500.00 4,500,00 9 35,736.3 3

May-23 180,634.33 535,3 77.00 10,000.00 726,Ott.33
Jun-23 242,O74.33 306,051.00 11,500.00

TOTAL 6,672,437.62 12,284,382.00 84,000.00 27,000.00 t9,067 ,819.54

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs. IKshs.

885.1 8(r

lntangitrlc A sscts

88.s.1 8(r

2{t22-2021

Managcnrent lees _ __
L,oa n orrlflorv

TOTAL

1,498,195.00

Descriptlon

J'r()l)cl'l)' I)llnl anrl [..rlrriprncnt



Kili/i Counly Micnlitrurtce (I'l/czesha) Fund
Attttrrol rclrort and lTinonciol .stotanrcnts lbr lhe yeor anded.hrne 30. 2023

Nolcs lo thc Financial Statcments (Continuetl)

15. Financinl risk managemcnt

'l-hc Fund's activities expose il to a variety ol financiai risks including credit and liquidity
risks and efl'ects ol changcs in loreign crrrrency. The Fund's overall risk management
progl'anlnrc focttses on unprediclability olchanges in thc business envirorrrnenl and seeks to
ntinirnisc tlre potcntial advcrsc ellect ofsuch risks on its perfontrance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. I-hc Fund does not hedge any risks and lras in place policies to ensure thar
credit is only extended to customers w,ith an established credit history.

-['hc [:und's financial risk rrranagement olr.jectives and policies are detailed below:

a) (lrcrlit risk

.l 
hc l;uncl has exposurc to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparly will be unable to

pay amotrtrls in ltrll when drre. Credit risk ariscs from cash and cash equivalents. and deposits
with hanks. as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
ittvcsltttcnts. Managcttrcnt asscsscs thc crcdil qrrality ol cach custorner. taking into accounl its
Irnancial posilion. past expericncc and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
irrternal or ex(cntal assessnrent irr accordance with linrits sel by the directors. The amounts
presented in thc statentent ol financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables.
eslimaled by the Kilifi County Microfinance (Wezesha) Fund's management based on prior
cxperience and their assessrnent of the current economic environment. The carrying amount
of financial assets recorded in thc financial statcrnents representing the entity's maximurn
cxposttl'c to crcdit risk without taking account of'the valuc of any collatcral obtained is nrade
trp as follows:

llcccir';rhlcs Iilolrr N rrrr - l:x clrirrrg.c
lrrnsacliorrs

llank Ila lanccs 716,t59,207 t16,759,202

354,549,121

Rcccivahlcs I:ront l;xghnl1*a
lransaclions

Al 30 ,lrrnc 202-1

238,389,919 238,389,919

354,549,121

244.97 5.7 7 4

I

Ilcccivahlcs l:ronr I :xch;rngc
'li ansirctirrns

llrrrrk lla lir nccs

'[olal

244.q7 5.7 7 4

246.079.579

I . t0_r.80-( | . r0.r.805

246,01q.579

'folnl

r\l -10,lunc 2022

l

Past
due
Kshs

Impaired
Kshs

lleceivables l;ronr Non l:xchange
lransactions_. 

-_ _



K il i/i ('ortntv 14icro/inancc (ll'o;cslrr) litnd
/rtntrol relrtrl anrl [:irtarrcial ,\lal(tn(,tls; fitr lhc t'anr cntlatl ,ltrnc -]0, 202-?

Nolcs 'l o 'l'hc l"inrtncial Slnlcrrrcnls (('ontinrred)

'l'hc customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
lrading. I'he credit risk associated with these receivables is rninimal and the allowance lor
runcollcctihle arnounts that the entity has recognised in the financial statements is considered
adcquatc lo cover any potentially irrccoverable alnoullts.

l'he [rund l]oard ol Directors sets the Fund's credit policies and objectives and lays down
parallctcrs u,ithin rvhiclr thc various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

h) l,iquidily risk managcmenl

I lltinralc rcsponsibility lor liquidity risk nranagenrent rests with the Fund Adurinistrator. who
has hrrilt an appropriatc liquidity risk rnanagernent franrework for the managernent of the
cnlity's sholt. rncdiunr and long-terrn lunding and liquidity managenrent requirements. The
entity nranages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash
florvs-

'I'hc tablc hclou,rcprcscnts cash llows payahlc by thc l;rrnd undel non-derivative financial
liabilitics h1, thcir rcnraining corrtractual nratrrritics at thc reporling datc. 'I'hc amounts
disclosed in thc table arc the cor')traclrral undiscorrnted cash florvs. [Jalanccs due u'ithin l2
ntorrtlrs eclual thcil carryirrg balarrces, as tlrc inrpact of discor.urting is not significant.

'l ra<lc Pavah les

Loans Pal'ahlc

'l radc Payables

Loans l)11y-f lg

1.202.940

'l olx I

t.446.000

2.648.940 2.6.18.940

Al .10.lrrnc 202J

At .10 ,lrrnc 2022

'l'otal

t.202.940

1.44(r.000

-l

Between 1-
3 months Totel

Over 5
months

Kshs



K i l i /i C o t t t t t.r' l'l i c' r' o f i no n cc ( Ll' czc.s fu t ) F u nd
Atrtrrnl rq>orl ond Financiol .statcncnls.for lhc veor endcd ,Jtrne 30. 2023

Nolcs To I'hc Financial Stnlenrcnls (Conlinued)

c) Ma rkcl risk

'l-hc hoard has pul in place an intemal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
tlre cntity on an ongoing basis. evaluate and test the desi_en and effectiveness of its intemal
accounting and operational contrnls.

Market risk is thc risk arising fi'onr changcs in rnalkel prices. such as intercst rate. equity
priccs and lbrcign exchange rates which will aflcct thc entity's income or the value of its
holding o[ financial inslnrnrents. The ob.icctive of markcl risk nranagemcnt is to manage and
control ntarkct risk cxposurcs rvithin acccptablc paramelers. rvhilc optinrising the return.
Overall rcsponsihilitv lor nranaging nrarket risk resls with the Audit and Risk Management
Conrnrittce.

'Ihe Fund's Finance Deparlment is responsible for the development of detailed risk
rnarlagcmenl policies (sub.iect to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Conrnrillec) and lor the day-to-day irnplenrentat ion olthose policies.

'l'herc has hccn no change to the cnlity's exposurc to r.narkct risks or the nranner in which it
lnanages and rreasrrres the risk.



K i I i /i C o r ot t.r, A4 i c r o /i n a n c e ( Ll/ ez c s ha ) Fu n d
,ltrttual rcporl ond Financiol .slalenrcnl,s fbt, lltc.t,cnr t,ndarl ,hrne 30, 2023

Nolcs'l'o Thc l-inancial Stalements (Conlinue<l)

d) (lapiial risk managcmcnt.

Thc oh.icctivc of'thc Ftlnd's capilal risk rnanagcnrcnl is to safeguarcl the Fund's ability to
conlinuc as a going conccrn. Thc Kilifi county Microfinance (wezesha) Fund.s capiial
strttcttrre contprises of the Revolving Fund and Accumulated surplus as at 3Oth June 2023

l.ess: cash and bank halances

Nct <lcht/(cxccss cash anrl cash
cqrrivalcnts)

(i ca ring

16, Flvcnts after thc repoding periorl

'I hclc u,crc rro nratcrial ad.jusling and non- ad.iLrsting cverrls after the reporting period.

17. I Iltinrntc nnd [Iolding E,ntitv

.l'hc 
cntity is:r Cotrnly Puhlic Fund established hy Kilifi County Microfinance Wezesha Fund

Act 20 I (r and atncndtnents 20 I 8. 2022. 202 3.'l'he funcl is unde i the department of Trade,'lirLrrisnt and coopcrativc l)cvelopnrent.

18. Crr rrcnc.y

'I he financial statemcnts are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

23 1.236.8-s3

I 5.966. t 38

247,202,99t

Rcvolvine li rnd 34.1.7,s6.8-s j

folal borror.vings

Accunr u lalc<l sr rrp lu s

Total frr nrls

| .s..s9.s.671

-159.352.524

(r r6,t59.202)

I t6.t59.202 ( r. r03.80s)

(r.t0-1.805)

E

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshs



Kilifi Count.v Micro/inonce (llezesho) Fund
Atrtrrutl rclxrt ond Finonciol .stotenrcnls.for lhc ycar L:ndcd ,hmc 30. 2023

20. l'rogrcss on follou, rrp of prcviorrs ycar aurlilor's Rccommcndalion
.l-hc 

lollorving is the suntnraty ol issues raised by the external auditor. and management comments

thal wcre providcd to the auditor.

Ineccuracl
es ln the
Flnancial
Statements

i. The
statemen ts of
financial
pe rforma n ce
reflcct other
income
(managcmcnt
fees) of
Kshs.3,889,00
0 whereas the
recalcrr la ted
amount was
Kshs.
6.863,480
resulting in
unexplaincd
variance of
Kshs.
2,974,480.
Further, thc
statemen t of
financial
position
rcfler:ts loans
not disbursed
oI kshs.
1.178,000 that
have been
classified as
current assel s.
Managcment
did not explain
why thc loans
were classified
as rcceivables
yet had not

Rcsolve<l

Status: Timeframe:
(Put a datc
when you

qpecl lhe issae
lo be resolved)

Resolved)

'fhe lund

management took

note of that and

rect ifi ed the matler.



K ili.[i (-ornt.t' 14icro/innnce (Wczcsho) Fund
,lnnrnl reltort ond Finoncial ,stotenre,ll.t ./br lha .t'eor endcrt ,lttna 30, 2023

bcen
disbursed to
the applicants
and hence the
loans
receivables
were
oversl a ted .

The
statemcn t
ol
financia-l
position
reflects
cash and'
cash
equivalent
s balance
o f Kslr s.
1.103,80.5
for t h ree
barrk The management
accounts took note of that
maintairre and rcctificd thc
d by thc matter'
Fund.
Rcview of
the bar-rk

reconci lia ti
ons
sta tements
revea led
u n prc scnt
ed
cheques of
I(shs.
I4,595,37
6 out of

Rcsolved

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

Stetus:
(R.esolved /

Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Put a date

whqn yqu
expect the is.sue

lo be rcsolved)T

I

I

I



K ili.[i (-ortnt.t' l'licrrii rtott<-c (ll/az<:.sl,a:-) l"trnd
,4ttnrnl rcltn l rrnrl liinonciol .slolentcnt<.for lhr' .t't'ar crrlctl ,lrttrt' -10' 2023

which
cheques
totaling
I(shs.
14,395.84
O were
subsequen
tly cleared
leavir-rg
cheques of
Kshs.
199.536
whicl-r
wcre stale
as at 30
,lunc 2022
but had
not been
reversed in
thc
ca sh books

iii. The
slatement of
financial
position and
notc 5 to the
financial
sta tcmcn ts
reflect loans
rcceiva ble of
Kshs.
244,975,774
while the report
ol t he loans
awardcd during
t lre year
inclicatecl an

Sr.rbmission done
to thc Cout-rty
assemble on l8'h
Dec 2023 for
review

Nol rcsolvcrl

Still pending
-fhc 

rnatter is

still at Public

. n ccolrnts and

investrnent

comrr ittee.

Fehruary 2024

the matter will
he concluded

Status:
(Resolved /

Not

Timeframe:
(Put a date

when you
expect lhe issue

to be resolved)
Resolved)

I



Kili/i Corrnlt' Micro/inance (Wczesho) Ftnd
,4rrtrrtrtl rcltorl ontl l;'inancial stolctttcnls for lhc .t'cor cnded 'lune 30' 202i

amount out of
kshs.
2Oa306,342
resulting in an
unexplaincd
var'iance of
Kshs.
36,669,432. In
addition, the
agcing ar.ralysis
for loans
awarded as at
3O June 2022
rcflccts duc of
kshs.
476,803,L66
against the
reported loans
receivable of
Kshs.
244,975,77 4

hcnce resulting
in unexplairled
variancc of
Kshs.
230,837,392.
Further, the
estimated
pcnalties of
Kshs.
6.935,762
charged at a
ra te of .5'X, oo
dclayed
payments, as
provided under
Regulation
l4(3) ol the
I<ilifi CountY
Microfinancc

(Resolved /
Nol

Resolved)

Tinteframe:
(Put a dale

,)hen you

spect lhe ksue

to be resolved)

I

I



K ili.fi Corrnl' ll'licrolinanca (\4/czcsha) Frtnd

lnnrrt,l rcltitrl ttnl I;inttttcial sloletrtctrts/bt thc .l'cnr cntlcrl 'lrrnc 30' )023

(Mbegu) Fund
Rcgulat ions.
20 19 wcrc t-tot

disclosed as

rccciva blc.

v. The
statement of
financial
position and
Note 6 to the .

fi n an cial
statcmen ts
reflecl ProPerlY'
plzrrrt and
equipment
balancc of
Kshs.
2,325,512.
H outerrcr.
Sect ion (C) ol
thc Funds
summary of
Significant
Accounting
Policies otl
PropertY, Plant
and EquiPment
ba'lances are
stated at Cost.
Il owever, t l-r e

policy docs not
providc for
depreciation ol
asscts and
impairment
losscs, an
indication that
thr: a sst:ts

We acknowledge
and aPPreciate
the error raised
ab<lrrc. Tl-rc F-und
considcred this
matter and
started deducting
depreciation on
Assets on
reducing balance.

cdesoR

Resolved)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not

Timeframe:
(Pul a date

when You
qecl lhe issue

to be resolved)

-E



Other
Matt
ers

K i I i / i (' o r r n t.t' M i c r o fi n o n c e ( ll/ cztt.s h o ) Fu n d
,4nntnl rqtorl ond Financiol stotemenl.s for thc year anded,hme 30. 2023

ba la nce
Kshs.
2,32s,512
overstated
thc

of

was
by

undetermined
amount. No
explan a ti orr
was given for
the non -

provision of
d e preciation
ch a rges.

1. Budgetary
Control end
Performance
The statement
of
Comparisor-r
of Budget and
actual The Fund did not
amounts rcceive its
rcflects fi1al l-rudgetary
receipts allocation from
br:dgel and t l-re Cor:nlY
actrra I ol1 (]orzcrnmcrrt

comparablc during tlre Period
basis of Kshs. under review due
197,2OO,OOO to unforeseen
and kshs. legal challenges.
3,889,000 These challenges
rcsl-rcr:t ivcly have sillce beet-t

resulting ir-r resolved.
an
unclerlunding
of Kshs.
193,311,000
(or 98"h\ ol
the budget.
Similarly, the

I{esolycrl

-- --l

Status:
(Resolved /

Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Put a dote

when !6u
spect lhe ksue
to be resolved)



h' i I i /i C o t t n t.t' M i c r o.f i n o n <: e ( ll/ az a s h a ) Fi t nd
tltrrrrnl rq,()rt o,td lt-irmttcirrl slolenrt,rttt.fbr lhc .t'cor t,nrlcrl ,lmtc 30, 2023

lund
cxpended
Kshs.
85,904,990
against an l

a pproved
br.rdgct ol
Kshs.
197.200.000
resulting to
an under-
cxpcnditurc of
kshs.
r 1r,295,010
(or 56"h\ of
the budget.

2. Unresolved
prlor year
metters

Various prior
year audit
issu es
remained
un resolved as
;rt 30 ,Irrnc.
2022.
Management
has nol
provided
rcasons for thc
dclay in
resolving the
prior year audit
issues. Further,
thc unrcsolved
prior ycar
issues are nol
disclosed under
thc progress on
lollow up of
auditor's
recommendatio

We acknowledge
the above matter
and have taken
notc of thc same.
We are glad to
report that we
have made
progress on follow
up of prior ycar
Auditors
recommendations

llcsolverl

_l

Status:
(Resolved

Not
Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Pul a date

when t'ou
ultect lhe lssue

to be resolved)



REPORT
ON
LAWFULNE
SS AND
EFFECTIV
ENESS IN
THE USE
OF PUBLIC
RESOURC
ES

h' i I i. /i (' r t r t n l.r l'l i c r o /i n a n c c ( ll/ cz cs h a ) [: r n d
/trtntol rclvtrt and I"inonciol .slntenrcnt.s .fbr thc .t'cor (ndd ,lu,re 30. 2023

lls sect.ion or
the financial
statemen ts as
required by the
Public Sector
Accounting
Standards
Board.

1. Issuance
of
Unapprov
ed Loans

Note 13 to the
fir-rancial
st?ltcmcnts
reflects loan
rlislrr r rsr:rrrcnt s
of l(sh.
132,792,541.
I Ior.vcvcr, rcvicu/
of the loa rr s
applications
schcdulc and
loan
d is bu rse men t
sch cdu le
revcal ed t lr a t

I h ree hr:nrlrecl
arrcl trventy-cight
(32ft) groups
wcre rr ot in the
list of successlul
applicants
approved by the
Board but werc
issued with
'loi'rns amotrnI irrg
to 4l ,865,000.
ln;rddition. out
of t hc 32Il
grorrps. 122
grolrps advanccd

Submission done
to thc County
assemble on I 8th
Dec 2023 for
revicw.

Nol rcso lved

I

Still pending.

The matter is

still at Public

Accounts and

investment

conrm ittee.

Fehruary 2024

the matter w,ill

he concluded.

Rcferenco:

Not
(Resolved

Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Pul a tute
when you

upect lhe issue

to be retolved)



K ili/i Cr>ttnlt Microlinan<:e (\|/L,zp.sha) Fund
,lrrtrrnl rqxrl and l;inatu:ial .slrtlenrcnls .[itr lhc .r'cor cnded ,horc 30. 2023

loans totaling
Kstr. 15,71O.00O
had not sl art ed
repayment
although the
same were due
as at 30 ..lunc
2022.

2. Un-
secured
Loans

Thc statcmcnt of
firra n cia I

position and
Note 5 to the
financial
statemen ts
rcflect a balance
ol Kshs.
244,975,774 as
loans rcce'ivablc.
I{ou,ever, despite
the loans
a pplicatiorl
ft:rrms indicating
that various
securities were
held against the
inrlividuals'loarrs
applicatior-r
forms indicating
that varior-rs
securities u,ere
hcld against the
irrdividual loans,
no cvidence was
provided to
confirm that the
securities were
irr cr-rstody of tl.re
fund or helcl
jointly until the

Submissiorr dorre
to the County
a ssemble on I 8rh
Dec 2023

oN

olvcdrcs

Still pending.

The matter is

still at Puhlic

Accounts and

investment

committee.
February 2024

the matter will
be cornpleted

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Put a dale

when you
expecl lhe issue

lo be resolved)x

I

I

i
I



I

K i I i /i ( - 

o r m t.v M i c r o li n o n c c ( ll/ ttz c s ho ) ['i t n d
innrrul ral)ot'l and [;indncidl slotcnrnt,t for tln.t,cor cnrlcd,lunc a0,2023

loans are lully
cliscl.r a rgcd,
contrary t.o

Regulatiorr 9(6)
or the Kilifi
Counly
Microfinance
(Mbegu) Fund
Regul ation s.
2019 which
states that the
loan lorm shall
clearly state; (a)

amount applied.
(b) purpose, (c)
rcpayment and
(d) securit.y
offered.
3. Non-

Repayme
nt of
Loans

The statement of
financial
position and
Note 5 lo thc
Financial
sta temen ts
reflecl loans
receivab le
l;alance of Kshs.
244.975,774 out
of which l(sl'rs.
138,71 5,246.
includcd an
amount of l(shs.
30,Sft9,2.56
issued to threc
hundred and
fi ft een (3 I .5)

grorrps who had
rrot servi<:ed llrc
loans for over

Managcments
took note of that
Steps for loan
recoveries t :rken

lycdIlcso

' Stalus:
Reference '

(Reqolved /

Resqlyed)

(Pul o date

when you
qect lhe issue

b be resolved)



K ili/i Ct>tmt.t' Microfinance (ll/czesho) litnd
.lrtrttrttl r(l,otI (ut(l l irtttrttitrl sloltntutls.[or lhc -t'ctrr t'rtlctl ,lrnc 30, :0:3

ninety (90) days
and were
t herelore in
delaull. In
addilion, an
amount ol Kshs.
1a,872,792.34
represen I ed n or-r -

performing loans
ca rricd forward
from thc prior
ycars with nil
repaymenls,
con I raln lo
Regulation
la(S)(a) of the
Kilifi County
rnicrofinance
(Mbegu) Funcl
Regr-rlations,
20 19 that states
that 'a loarr shall
be considered to
in defar:lt when
a borrower is
nincty (90) days
lale in
repaymenl a ncl
all cfforts to
make him or her
repay have
completely
failed.
4. Irregular

Issuance
of Loans

Note l3 to tlre
firran<:ial
st alemen ts
reflect loans
dis bu rsemen ts
of Kshs.
132,792,54t.

Submission done
to the County
assemble on l8rh
Dec 2023

I

I
I

Not reso h'crl

Stillpcnding
t The rnatter is

still at Public
Accounts and

invcstnrent

conr m it1ce.

February 2024

the m atter will
he completed

''Reference" Status:

-

Timeframe:
(Pul o date

when you

acpect lhe issue

lo be resolved)

@esolved i

i

l

Reqglved)



K i I i / i (- o t r n t.t' l'l i c r o fi n o t t c e (llt ttzas h o ) F t t n d
Annrnl raltrtrt ond [;inanciol .statenrcnt.s .for thc..t,car cndarl ,htnc 30, 2023

Review of tl're
loans
d isbu rse men ts
regist er revealed
tlrat seventeen
( I 7) grorr ps rvere
issured witl.t
multiple loans
before lull
rcpaymcnt oI
previous loans.
Thc groups
received a total
of Kshs.
22,530,OO0
whereby I(sl.rs.
4.759.932 had
been repaid
leaving a
balarrcc of l(shs.
77,77O,067 out
of which Kshs.
9,647,067 was
in Arrears

I

Status: Timefiame:
Reference

No. on the
(Resolved

Raolved)

(Put a date

whe'n you
upecl lhe issue

to be resolved)

ertcrnsl



k'ili/i ('t>rtttt.v fi,lit-rofi nrr rrt:t, (ll'azc.sln) [;trnd
,.lttttrrol rqtrtrl rnd [,'inoncial .rlalcnrcnt,r fitr tha ycor t,nclcrl ,hrne 30, 202_1

5, Irregular
Board
Allowance
s

The statement of
financiai
pcrformancc and
Note 3 to the
financial
sl at emen ts
rcflcr:ts gcncral
c x 1-lc rt scs of
I(slrs. 3,073.190
r.r,h ich includes
arr amourrt of
I(shs. 243.3OO
orr the Board
;rllowances
which was iraid
r:ontrary to thc
provisions of the
Mltegrr Fur-r cl

Act. 2O l6
Section 6(4) and
1O(5) as
amended in I l're
2O l8 which
statcs that 'thc
olficcs in t ltr:
Board and Sub-
Oorrnty Micrcr
finance
committcc shall
rlot attract any
remuneration'

lirrrxl N4arragcr/Aocounting. ( ) f'fi ccr

Management
took note
of that
and
action
taken

l{csolvcd

I)a lc I.o lr-)aazr

Rdferdrici
No. on the l

erternsl
eudlt

comments .

Resolved)

Status: Timeframe:
(Put a dote

when you
eryect the lssue

to be resolved)

(Resolved
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